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The First Congregational Church of Portland was constructed over a period of six 
years, 1889-95, Henry J. Hefty of Switzerland, architect for the building, designed 
the building in the period style of the "Venetian" manner, using the tradition of John 
Ruskin, the persuasive 19th century critic and aesthete. Ruskin admired Italian Gothic 
styles with their rich mixtures of Arabic, Byzantine, and Venetian elements. Some of 
these features, notably the smaller towers at the northwest and southeast corners of 
the building, have been removed. The towers were removed in 1940. Although minor 
changes have been made, the structure is still in excellent condition and it maintains 
the "Venetian" style,

The church measures 94 x 98 feet. Its exterior is constructed of basaltic rock, 
with some broken ashlar, and a Tenino sandstone trim. The auditorium is 92 x 92 feet 
in the shape of a Greek Cross faced with polished redwood and stucco. The ceiling is 
35 feet high. The floor slopes down toward the pulpit with the pews in a half-circle 
facing the pulpit. With the gallery above, the auditorium accommodates 1100 members. 
The interior is relatively plain, and the design is basically that of other 19th century 
Oregon preaching churches. The minister and pulpit are emphasized rather than the 
medieval cruciform plan with a focus on the altar.

The remaining central tower suffered substantial damage during the October 12, 1962 
Columbis Day storm. The damage to the tower and several interior changes, including 
the installment of an elevator in the tower, amounted to $86,000. Even with the changes, 
the general treatment, the carved and textual effects, the memorial windows, the arches, 
lintels, and roof coverings still reveal a strong Victorian desire for richly manifested 
forms. This structure would comfortably tit in either the east or west coast.

Current plans call for the restoration of the deteriorating sandstone and other 
items in need of repair. The reconstruction of the two towers removed in 1940 is also 
contemplated but costs for the work may be prohibitive.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Portland First Congregational Church is significant both for its historical and its 
architectural attributes; its importance is further enhanced by its location in the 
South Park Blocks of Portland, The First Congregational Church was founded in 1851 - 
making it the oldest Congregational Church in the Pacific Northwest', The 185-foot high 
Italian Gothic Tower is the primary feature of the structure. The tower is one of the 
more impressive architectural attractions in Portland,

The church enhances and is enhanced by its location in the South Park Blocks, which 
extend along the west edge of the downtown core area. Its style of architecture is the 
only such example on the twelve South Park Blocks, It adds to other important structures 
on the "blocks" - notably the Portland Art Museum Center (on the National Register) 
and the Paramount Theater and St. James Lutheran Church (both nominated to the National 
Register).

The present building is the third house of worship for the First Congregational 
Church. Organized in 1851, the church's second minister, Dr, George Atkinson (1854^55, 
1863-73), was the founder of Congregationalism in the Pacific Northwest and founder of 
the public school system in Oregon, It took six years to construct the church. A 
delay of two years (1893-95) was necessary because of the Panic of 1893, The building 
was dedicated in July, 1895, with a total cost of $110,000.

The tower is ornately designed and constructed of stonework and sheet metal. It 
suggests Gothic prototypes. The exterior of the church is accented by three magnificent 
stained glass windows.

Although portions of the building have been altered (notably the removal of the 
NW and SE towers), it maintains its original dignity. The center tower acts as a 
focal point for Portlanders and the many visitors. The First Congregational Church 
is structurally sound and is an important contribution to Portland and Oregon architecture
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